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Chartered Accountants

Building No.10, 8th Floor, Tower-B Telephone: + 91 124 719 1000
DLF Cyber City, Phase - |l Fax: + 91124 235 8613
Gurugram - 122 002, India

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Minda Vast Access Systems Private
Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year
then ended, and notes 1o the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafier referred to as ‘Ind AS financial statements®).

Management's Responsibility for the IndAS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act. 2013 ("the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial conmtrols that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free lrom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable. matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unfess management either intends to liquidate the Company or 1o cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is 10 express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit,

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act. the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made

thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We are also responsible to conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause an entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of
aftairs of the Company as at 31 March 2018, its profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" a staterment on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been hept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

¢} The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss. the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:

d) In our opinion. the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act;

¢) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2018 1aken on
record by the Board ol Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Aci:
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f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

-
| "Annexure B";

. g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11

§ of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information

: and according to the explanations given to us:

] i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind
E .

i AS financial statements — Refer Note 2.30 to the IndAS financial statements;

© il.  The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivate contracts for which there
; _ were any material foreseeable losses;

% tii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred 1o the Investor Education and
] Protection Fund by the Company; and

£ iv.  The disclosures in the IndAS financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
g specified bank notes during the period from 8" November 2016 to 30" December 2016 have not
- been made since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2018. However

amounts as appearing in the audited financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2017
have been disclosed.

s

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101248 -100022

N s

Shashank Agarwal

Fr—

Place: Gurugram Partner
Date: 14 May 2018 Membership No.: 095109
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Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members
of the Company on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, we report

the following:

e

: M

TP ——

T

TRty

(i)
g (i)
(iv)
(v}
(vi)
{vii)

(a)

(b)

(c)

{a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
detaits and situation of fixed assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all
fixed assets are verified every year. in our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. As informed to
us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification and have been properly dealt with

in the books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of the immovable properties are held in the name of

the Company.

The inventories, except goods in transit and stocks lying with third parties, have been physically
verified by the management during the year. [n our opinion, the frequency of such verification is
reasonable. For stocks lying with third parties at the year end, written confirmations have been
obtained. According to the information and explanations given to us, the discrepancies noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book records were not material.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies and other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, there are no Firms or Limited
Liability Partnership covered in the register required under section 189 of the Companies Act. 2013.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the basis of our examination
of'the records of the Company. the Company has not undertaken any transaction in respect of loan.
guarantee and securities covered under section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company
has not made any investment as referred in section 186(1) of the Act, other requirements relating
to section 186 do not apply to the Company.

As per the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not accepled any deposits
as mentioned in the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there
under. Accordingly. para 3(v) of the order is not applicable.

According 1o the information and explanations given to us. the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013 for any of the activities performed by the Company,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company. amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statwtory dues including Provident Fund. Employees™ State Insurance. Income- tax.
Sales tax. Service tax. Goods and Service Tax. Duty of customs. Duty of excise, Value added tax.
Cess and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited during the vear by
the Company with the appropriate authorities.
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According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Goods
and Service Tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise, Value added tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2018 for a period of more than six months irom the

date they became payable.

At

sy

{(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no disputed dues in respect

? ’ of Duty of customs, Duty of Excise, Goods and Service Tax and Value added tax which have not
i been deposited with the appropriate authorities. The following dues of Income tax, Service tax and
Sales tax have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of disputes:
o
g Name of the statute | Nature of } Amount | Period to | Payment Forum where
B the dues (Rupees | which the | under protest | dispute is pending
in lacs)* | amount in {Rupces in
1 relates lacs)
|
- Income-tax Act, | lncome-tax | 138.32 2013-2014 - Assessing Officer
_ 1961
Central Excise Act. | Service tax | 31.49 2013-2014 17.03 Commissicner
1944 Appeals
Central Excise Act. | Service tax | 93.17 2013-2014 - Commissioner
1944 Appeals
Ceniral Excisc Act. | Service tax | 19.63 2011-2010 - Assessing Officer
1944

*amount as per demand orders. including imerest and penalty. wherever indicated in the said orders.

(vili} In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has
p g g pany

not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks and financial institutions. Further, the Company had

no loans or borrowings from government at any time during the vear and had not issued any

P —

debentures during the year or outstanding as at 31 March 2018,

(ix} The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. The term loans were applied for the purposes for
which those were raised to the extent utilised during the vear.

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us. no fraud by the Company and no fraud
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during year.

(xi) The Company is a private limited Company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly. paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi1) According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly. paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

{xiii) According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no transactions with the related parties which are not in
compliance with section 188 of the Companies Act. 2013 and the details have been disclosed in
the IndAS Financial Stalements. as required. by the applicable accounting standards. Further.
provision of section 177 of the Act are not applicable 10 the Company.
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{xiv)

(xv)

{xevi)

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment, private
placement of shares and fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,

paragraph 3{xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph

3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm’s registration no.: 101248 -100022

A

Shashank Agarwal

Place: Gurugram Parmer
Date: 14 May 2018 Membership No.: 095109
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Ind AS financial statements of
Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited Limited for the year ended 31 March 2018

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financtal controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of Minda Vast
Access Systems Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essentiat components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (*TCAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 1o
Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing. issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act. 2013. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of [ndia.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement. including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial contrels system with reference to Ind AS financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Ind AS financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind
AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control with reference to Ind AS financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to Ind AS financiai statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control with
reference to Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
camponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reperting, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForBSR & Co, LLP
Chartered Acconntants
Firm Registration No.: 101248 W/A7-100022

Shashank Agarwal
Place: Gurugram Partner
Date: 14 May 2018 Membership No.: 095109




- Mlinda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Balaoee Sheet as at 31 March 2018
(Rs. int million)
= Note As at Asat Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
ASSETS
e
Nop-current assets
Property, plantand equipment 2.1 wm 329 325
Capital work-in progress 2.1 18 24 7
- Intangible assets 2la 41 15 i7
1 Financizl assets
Leans 22 4 4 4
Income tax assets 23 27 18 |
Deferred tax Assets {(Net} 221 18 15 31
Other non-curcent assels 2.4 - s |
479 406 396
LCurrcit assets
Inventorics 25 227 206 219
5 Financia! asscls
i. Investments 26 154 100 -
ii.  Trade receivables 27 223 185 262
iii.  Cashand cash equivalents 23 65 35 il
iv.  Other bank balances 29 151 234 50
v, Othes financial assels 210 n 13 2
Other current assets 21 177 152 146
1,008 215 790
TOTAL L4587 1,32] E,180
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
) EQUITY
F Equity share capital 212 427 427 437
Other equity 213 459 338 214
836 765 641
LIABILITIES '
Noa-current liahilities
Financial Liabifites
Borrowings 2.44 1 | 10
Provisions 215 34 22 50
a5 23 (1]
Finaneial Liabilitics
L Trade payables 216 417 187 374
i, Other financial lizhilsties 217 65 49 33
Other current liabilities 218 a6 86 38
Provisions 2.19 EX) 25 23
Current tax liabilities 220 § ] 13
] 566 533 479
- TOTAL 1,487 1,321 1,180
Significant accounting policies i
The accompanying notes from 1 to 2.39 form an integral part of the Bnancial statements
As per cur report of even date altached
g i - 6 For and are behabl of the Boxvd of Directorf of
b ‘ Minda Vst Aceess Systems PrivatoLimitdi —
k2
] For BSR & Co. LLP i
L Chartered Accomtanis B Frank Joseph Krejei /
Firm cegisiration number $01248WAY-100022 Dazector
{DIN G0051727) ! DINQ7121998)
Shashank Agarwal Sudlsir Mahendra Naredi
Partrer Dirgetor CFQ & Company Sceretary
Membership Ne.: 095199 (DIN 96573561} TAEWPNGI1IM)
] Place; Gurugrym Place Gurugram

Date: 14 May 2018 Date: 14 May 2018




Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
. Statemcat of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2013
{Rs. in million)

I Not For the year ended For the year ended
neome ¢ 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
£ Revenue from operaticns 272 2,601 2,773
Other income 223 42 98
TFotal income 2,653 2,87t
Expenscs
Cost of materials censumed 224 1,733 1,692
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 225 4 I5
Excise duty on sales 70 284
1 Employee benefits expenses 2.26 303 301
Finance costs 227 1 1
3 Tepreciation and amortisation expenses 2.1,21a G 68
Other expenses 228 318 333
Total expenses 2,492 2,694
Profit before tax 161 177
Current tax 2N 42 35
Deferred tax (eredit) / charge 221 {3) 16
Profit for the year 122 126
. Other comprehensive inconte
Ttean that will not be reclassified reclessified subsequient to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilitics [4}] {3)
Income tax selating to items that will not be reclassified to prefit or loss - }
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax [4}] (2)
o Total comprehensive income for the year 121 124
i Farnings per eguily share [Par value of Rs.2 (previous year Rs.2) per 2.13.1
equity share)
T Earnings per share {Rs.) {Basic) 2.84 290
] Earnings per share {Rs.) {Diluted) 2.84 290
Signidcant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes from 1 10 2.39 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For BSR & Co, LLP

Fraok B

Chartered Accountants ol Minda Frank Joseph Kref

3 Fipm registrafjon number: 1841245W, 0022 Director Director

5 i {DIN 00054727) (DIN 07121998)

- : X ) %Mm

4 Shashank Agarwal Sudhjzcishyap Mahendra Naredi
Pariner Director CFO & Company Secretary
Membership No.: 093109 (DIN 06573561} (AEWPNI LM}
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Daze; 14 May 2018 Date: 14 May 2018
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Liniited
Statentent of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2018

(Rs, in million}

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2047

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net profit before taxation

Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Interest expense
Loss / {(gain) on sale / discard of fixed assets
Bad debts
Provision for doubtful debts
Unrealised Foreign exchange loss
interest income
Dividend income
Lisbilities / provision no longer required written back
Recovery of Doubtful Debt
MTM on fair valuation of Investments
(Prafit) on sale / discard of investments

Operating profit before working eapital changes

Adfustmenis fors

(Iacrease) ! decrease in trade receivables

(Increase) / decrease in inventories

(Increase) in loans, other financial assets and other assets
(Decrease) f inerease in other finangial liabilitics and other lzabilitics
Increase / {decrease) in trade payables

Tncrease / (decrease) in other provisions

Cash generated frem operations
Income tax paid
Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B, Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets

Sale of fixed assets

Purchase of current / nen current investments
Dividend received

Maturity of investment

Interest received

Net cash (used in} / gencerated investing activities (B}

C. Cash llows fram financing activitics#
Receipt of term loans

Repayment of term loans

Interest paid

Net cash used in financing activities (C})

Net (tlecrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C)

Cash and eash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

# Refer note 2.14.1 for change in liabitities arising from financing activitics

Notes to Cash Flow Statements

161 177
66 68
| -
2 2
- 13
| .
! 1
(186) (7
5} (4}
un 69
(} -
(1} -
(i} -
197 171
(39) 60
(21) 13
(23) (12)
G 123
50 8
20 (26}
147 321
(52) (55)
95 266
Loy 9
I z
(1,596) (2,208)
5 q
1,543 2,108
19 6
(129) {157)
| -
(9) {12
() -
N (12}
(43) 97
259 162
216 259

i. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the mdirect methed set out in Accounting Standard 3 "Cash Flow Statement” spectfied under Section 133 of the Companies

Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

2. Cash ard cash eguivalents consists of cash in hand and balances with scheduled banks. Refer note 2.8.

Sigrificant accounting policies

The accompanying notes from 1 te 2.39 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For B8 R& Co. LLP
Chartered Accaumntants
Firm registratjon number: 101248W/W-1

. > .

Shashank Agarwal
Partner
Membership No.: 095109

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 20318

For and on behalf of the Boa

of Directors of

Minda Vast Access Sys}gms rivate Limited

hok Minda
Director
(DIN 00654727)

Sudhir Kas
T
(DIN 06573561}

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2018

Fraok Joseph Krejci

Director
(DIN 07121998}

batewds

Mahendra Naredi
CFO & Company Sceretary

(AEVPNOLLIA])



Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Reporting entity

The Company was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on 3" January 2007.During the financial
year 2015-2016, the Company became joint venture, w.e.f 1% May,2015 between Minda Management
Services Ltd and Vehicle Access Systems Technology, LLC, USA having equal share. The Company is a
market leader in security systems for the automotive industry. The Company manufactures products such as

Locks and Keys, Steering Column Locks, Immobilizers, Latches, External and Internal Door Handles.

2. Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

A. Basis of preparation

(i) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act’), Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules,
2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act (“financial statements™).

For all the periods up to and including 31 March 2017, the financial statements were prepared in
accordance with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other relevant provisions
of the Act (“Previous GAAP”). The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 are the
Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS, therefore, Ind AS 101, First
time adoption of Indian Accounting standards has been applied. An explanation of how the transition to
Ind AS has effected the previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
the Company is provided in Note 2.46.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 14" May
2018.

(ii} Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement Basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities (including Fair Value
derivatives instruments)

Liabilities for equity-settled share-based payment | Fair Value
Arrangements

Fair value of plan assets less present value of
defined benefit obligations

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability

(iif) Use of estimates and judgement

In preparation of these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates, and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements is included in the following
notes:

. leases: whether an arrangement contains a lease — point xii ()

. lease classification — Note 2.31

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

. Recognition and estimation of tax expense including deferred tax— Note 2.21

° Assessment of useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset — Note 2.1

. Estimation of obligations relating to employee benefits: key actuarial assumptions ~Note 2,15.2

. Valuation of Inventories — Note 2.5

. Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingency: Key assumption about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources — Note 2.30

. Fair value measurement — Note 2.38

iv) Measurement of fair values

A number of accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.. Also, fair value of financial instruments measured at
amortised cost is disclosed in Note 2.38.

Current-non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

Assets:

An asset is treated as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
(1) 1t is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal

operating cycle;
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(2) Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(3) It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(4) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.

Liabilities:

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(1) It is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

(2) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(3) It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(4) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty,
result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilitics respectively.

Operating cycle
Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
or cash equivalent

C. Summary of significant accounting policies
i) Foreign currency transactions and translations
Functional and presentation currency

The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates i.e., functional currency, to be Indian Rupees (7). All amount have been rounded-off
to the nearest million Rupees unless otherwise indicated. Further, at some places “-” are also put up to
value below Rs. 500,000 to make financial in round off to Rupees in millions.

Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencics as at the
balance sheet date, are translated at the balance sheet date exchange rates. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date exchange rates are generally
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments (other than investment in
subsidiaries and joint ventures) held at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in statement of
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equity investments (other than investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures) classified as
FVOCI are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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if) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criterion must
also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of goods

Sales include sale of manufactured goods, traded goods, tools, moulds and dies. Revenue is recognized
on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the customers. and no significant
uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of
products as well as regarding its collection. Sale of goods is inclusive of excise duty and is net of sales
tax, value added tax, Goods and Service Tax, applicable discounts and allowances and sales returns, if
any.

Export benefits

Export incentive entitlements are recognized as income when the right to receive credit as per the terms
of the scheme is established in respect of the exports made, and where there is no uncertainty regarding
the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Other operating income

Service income including job work income is recognized as per the terms of contracts with customers
when the related services are rendered. Income from royalty, technical know-how arrangements is
recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.

Dividend and interest income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the income is established. Income from
interest on deposits, loans and interest bearing securities is recognized using the effective interest

method.

iiiy  Property, plant and equipment

() Recognition and measurement

Jtem of property, plant and equipment are carried at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated
depreciation. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost attributable for bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use.

Advance paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets are shown under non-current asset and tangible
fixed assets under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. Capital work in progress
includes cost of assets at site, direct and indirect expenditure incidental to construction and interest on
the funds deployed for construction.

(b) Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has clected to continue with the carrying value of all its property,
plant and equipment recognized as at April 1,2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of property, plant and equipment.
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(¢) Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate assct, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. The costs of the day to day servicing
of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

{d) Derecognition
Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing

the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(e) Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method at the rates
reflective of the estimated useful life of the assets estimated by the management.

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the
assets are ready to use. Depreciation on sale/deduction from property, plant and equipment is provided
upto the date of sale, deduction as the case may be.

Premium paid on leaschold land and site development is amortised over the period of lease. Leasehold
Improvements are amortised on the straight-line basis over the lower of primary period of.

Depreciation on leased assets is in line with the depreciation policy of the Company and is depreciated
over the lower of useful life of such assets and the lease period.

Pursuant to this policy, depreciation on fixed assets has been provided at the rates based on the
following useful lives of fixed assets as estimated by management:

Category of asset Useful life (in years)
Factory building and office building 20

Computers (includes laptops, servers and networks) 3

Plant and Machinery 10

Tools and Dies 5

Office equipment 5

Furniture and fixtures 5

Vehicles 4

iv) Intangible Asset
a) Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets comprises computer software and patents at cost less accumnulated amortization and
accumulated impairment, if any.

Cost of intangible assets under development as at the reporting date are disclosed as intangible assets
under development.
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b} Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of ail its
intangible asscts recognized as at April 1,2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that

carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible assets.

¢) Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to

the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

(d)y Derecognition

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of intangible assets are determined by comparing the proceeds
from disposal with the catrying amount of intangible assets and are recognized in the statement of

profit and loss.

{e) Amortisation

The intangible assets are amortised over the period of five years, which in the management’s view
represent the economic useful life. Amortisation expense is charged on a pro-rata basis for assets
purchased during the year. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset

are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

v) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or development of
qualifying assets are capitalized. Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended uses are complete. Qualifying
assets are assets which take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.
Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent
that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an
expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss in the year in which they are incurred.

vi)  Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The basis of determination of cost for
various categories of inventory is as follows:

Raw materials, components and stores Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

and spares and stock in trade

Lower of cost and net realizable value..Material

Finished goods
cost plus appropriate share of Labour and
production overheads. Cost of finished goods
includes excise duty, wherever applicable

Work in progress Lower of cost and net realizable value .Material

cost plus appropriate share of the Labour and
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production overheads depending upon the stage of
completion, wherever applicable.

Tools Held for sale . Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is
determined on the basis of landed cost of
purchase. Cost is determined on first in first out
basis

vii) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36
‘Impairment of Assets’. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be
tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets
(the “cash-generating unit”, or “CGU”).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in
respect of CGUs are reduced from the catrying amounts of the assets of the CGU.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

viii) Research and Development

Revenue expenditure on research is expensed off under the respective heads of account in the year in
which it is incurred. Revenue expenditure on research is expensed off under the respective heads of
account in the year in which it is incurred.

Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses, if any. Property, plant and equipment used for research and development are depreciated in
accordance with the Company’s policy as stated above. Expenditure incurred at development phase,
where it is reasonably certain that outcome of development will be commercially exploited to yield
economic benefits to the Company, is considered as an intangible asset and amortized over the

estimated life of the assets.
ix) Employee Benefits

Short — term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable / available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.
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Defined contribution ptan:

Provident fund: Eligible employees of the Indian entities receive benefits from the provident fund,
which is a defined contribution plan. Both the employces and the Indian entity make monthly
contributions to the provident fund (with Regional Provident Fund Commissioner) equal to specified
percentage of the covered employee’s basic salary. The Company has no further obligations under the
plan beyond its monthly contributions.

Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity: The Indian entities provide for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement Plan (the “Gratuity
Plan™) covering eligible employees. The Plan provides payment to vested employees at retirement,
death or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the
tenure of employment with the Company. Liabilities related to the Gratuity Plan are determined by

actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date.

Other long term employee benefit:

Compensated absence: Un-availed leaves for the year are accumulated and allowed to carried over to
the next year and are within service period of the employees in accordance with the service rules of the
Company. Provision for compensated absence is made by the Indian entities based on the amount
payabie as per the above service, based on actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date.

Other employee bencfit plans:

Actaarial valuation:

The liability in respect of all defined benefit plans and other long term employee benefit is accrued in
the books of account on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary primarily
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each year of service as giving rise to
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final
obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows.

The discount rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is
based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date, having maturity
periods approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the Statement of profit and loss. Gains or
Josses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognized when the curtailment

or settlement occurs.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in ‘other equity’ in the statement of Changes in Equity and in the Balance Sheet.

X) Accounting for warranty

Warranty costs are estimated by the Company on the basis of technical evaluation and past experience
of costs. Provision is made for the estimated liability in respect of warranty costs in the year of
recognition of revenue and is included in the statement of profit and loss. The estimates used for
accounting for warranty costs are reviewed periodically and revisions are made, as and when required.
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xi) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease, transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

a) Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 2016, the Company has determined whether the
arrangement contains lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for other
elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If it is concluded for a finance lease that it is
impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognized at an amount
equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. The liability is reduced as payments are made and an
imputed finance cost on the liability is recognized using the incremental borrowing rate.

xii)  Income taxes

Income Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit
and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity.

(a) Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

(b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred
tax assets unrecognised or recognised, arc reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced
to the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be
realised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the probability of deferred tax
asset. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Minimum Alternative Tax (“MAT”) credit entiticment under the provisions of the Income-tax Act,
1961 is recognised as a deferred tax asset when it is probable that future economic benefit associated
with it in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, will flow to the Company and the asset
can be measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement is set off to the extent allowed in the year in which
the Company becomes liable to pay income taxes at the enacted tax rates. MAT credit entitlement is
reviewed at each reporting date and is recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable
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profits will be available against which they can be used. MAT credit entitlement has been presented as
deferred tax asset in consolidated balance sheet. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the probability of recognition of MAT credit entitlement.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

xiii) Segment Reporting

The Segment reporting policy complies with the accounting policies adopted for preparation and
presentation of financial statements of the Company and is in conformity with Ind AS 108.The
segmentation is based on the Geographies (reportable business segment) in which the Company
operates and internal reporting systems. The geographical segmentation is based on the nature and type
of services rendered. Based on the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the company’s performance and allocates resources
based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographical
segments.

xiv)  Earnings per Share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of
bonus issue and share split. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/ (loss) per share, the net
profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharehelders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The
dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have
been issued at a later date.

The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the
approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

xv)  Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is created when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is more likely
than not that there will be an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits to settle such
obligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value money and risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as finance
cost. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect current management

estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events
and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of future events
not wholly within the control of the Company. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or

disclosure is made,

Provision for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it, are
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recognized when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle a present obligation as a result of an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of
such obligation.

The Company does not recognise assets which are of contingent nature until there is virtual certainty of
realisability of such assets. However, subsequently, if it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits will arise, asset and related income is recognized in the financial statements of the
period in which the change occurs.

xvi)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand, cash balance with bank, and highly liquid
investments with maturity period of three months or less from the date of investment.

xvil) Finagcial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or

issue.
Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost;
- Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.Financial assets are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivatives financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirement to be measured at amortised
cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch
that would otherwise arise.
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Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;
- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in trapsactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial Assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest.

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. “Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets {e.g. non recourse

features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its
contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially
represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also
include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.
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Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets
at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.
However, see Note 2.38 for derivatives designated as hedging instruments.

Financial assets
at amortised
cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in

profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVIPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair valuc and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the cffective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition
Financial Assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on. the

modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
Jiability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet

when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:



Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write.off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

xviii) Investments in mutual funds

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for more than one year from the date of
acquisition are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as non-current
investments. Mutual funds are measured at FVTPL.

xix) Recent accounting pronouncements

A. Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with Customers: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has notified the Ind AS 115, Revenue from Coniract with Customers.

Ind AS 115, establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue should be recognized. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including Ind AS
18 Revenue. Ind AS 115 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018 and will
be applied accordingly.

The Company has completed an initial assessment of the potential impact of the adoption of Ind AS
115 on accounting policies followed in its financial statements. The quantitative impact of adoption
of Ind AS 115 on the financial statements in the period of initial application is not reasonably
estimable as at present.

Sale of goods

For the sale of products, revenue is currently recognized when the goods are delivered to the
customers’ premises, which is taken to be the point in time at which the customer accepts the gooads
and the related risks and rewards of ownership are transferred. Revenue is recognized at this point
provided that the revenue and costs can be measured reliably, the recovery of the consideration is
probable and there is no continuing management involvement with the goods.

Under Ind AS 115, revenue will be recognized when a customer obtains control of the goods.



Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes te the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Transition

The Company plans to apply Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method, with the effect of
initially applying this standard recognized at the date of initial application (i.e. 1 April 2018} in
retained earnings. As a result, the Company will not present relevant individual line items
appearing under comparative period presentation.

B. Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration:

On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”™) has notified the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign
currency transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. The
amendment will come into force from April 1, 2018. The Company has evaluated the effect of this
on the financial statements and the impact is not material.
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Minda Vast Access Systems Privafe Limited
Nates 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

2.2 Loans
{Rs. in millian}
Particulars Asat Asat As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 01 April 2016

Non-current
Security deposits

2.3 Income lax assels

Fl

4

4

{Rs. in million}

Particulars

Asat

Asat

31 Mnrch 2018 31 March 2017

Asat
01 April 2016

Advance income tax [nel of prevision Rs, 111 mijtion (March 31, 2017: Rs, 69 millioa, Apsil
1, 2016: Rs.2 millicn)

2.4 Other non-current asscts

27

18

17

(Rs. in million)

Particulars

As at

As al

31 March 2048 31 March 2047

Asal
01 April 2016

Advance recoverable in cash or kind
Prepaid expenses

Z & Inventories

{Rs. in millton}

Particulars As at As at As al
: 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 01 April 2016

Raw materials (including packing materials) 84 46 91

Add; Materials-in-transit 20 104 ] 104 8 9G

Work-in-propress 25 37 34

Finished goods 20 12 13

Add: Goods-in-transit 28 48 27 39 45 58

Tools 48 24 28

Stores and spares 2 2 -
227 206 119

2.6 Investments {faiv value througls profit or loss (FYTEL))

{Rs. in million)

Pzrticulars

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

As at
01 April 2016

Trvestments in mutual funds - unquoted

23,745 (March 31, 2017: 80,674, April 1 2016: Nil} units of Kotak
Low Duration Fund-Regular Plan Weekly Dividend, fully paid up

1,28,250 (March 31, 2017: 8,43,032, April 1 2016 : Nil) units of
Katak Equity Saving Fund -Growth, fully paid up

Aggregate beok value of unquoted other current investments
Aggregate book value of unquoted invesiments (both current and non current)

20 90 -
124 10 -
154 100 -
154 100 -
i54 100 -

2.7 Trade receivables
{Rs. in million)
. As at Asat Asat
Pasticulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 01 April 2016
Unsecured
Considered Good 181 180 245
Considered Boubtlul - i 18
Receivables from related partics {refer note 2.32) 42 5 17
Less' Allowance for doubtfuf debis - | ig
323 185 262
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 35 March 2018

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents

{Rs. in million)

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2018

Asat
31 March 2017

Asar

1 April 2H6

Cash and cash equivalenis
Casli on hand

Balance with bank
-On current accounts 12 2 i0
-Ciher bank balances 53 23 101
65 25 mn
2.9 Ciher bank balances
{Rs. in million)
Particulars As at As nt As at
b 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 0§ April 2016
Balance with bank
Deposits due 1o mature within 12 month on the reporting datc* 154 234 50
151 234 50

*Deposits include Nil (Marcl: 31, 2017: Rs. - million, April 1, 2016: Nil} other commitments pledge with Bank against Gurantee given to sale tax Department.

Information pursuant to G.S.R. 308 ( E) dated 30 March 2017 issued by Ministry of corporate affairs:

{Rs. in millien)

Specified  [Qther
Bank Notes |denominition Total
netes

Closing cash in hand as on 8 November 206

Permitted receipts

Permuried payments

Amount deposiled in banks

Closing cash in hand as on 30 December 2016

Naote: For the purpose of this disclosure, the term "Specified Bank Notes® shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government of [ndta, in the Ministry of Finance,
Department of Economic Affairs number 8.0, 3407(E), dated the 8th November, 2016,

2.10 Gther financial asseis

(Rs. in million}

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

As at
O April 2016

Current
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Advances to employees

2.11 Other curreat assets

10
1

12
1

11

13

{Rs. in mitlion)

Particulars

Balanges with governiment authorilies
Prepaid expenses

Advances to suppliers

Rebate claim receivable

Capital advances

As at As ot Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 61 April 2016

116 106 99

6 5 6

26 29 13

27 11 21

2 1 7

177 152 E46
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2,12 Equity share capit]

iR, in millinn)

Particul Anat Asat Asut
Aartentan 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 QF April 2086

2.1%1 Avthorised

50,600,000 (Mareh 31, 2017: 59,000,000, Apnt 1, 2016 530,000,000) cquity sharcs of Rs. 10 cach 500 500 3003
S00 500 500

2122 Towed, sulicerdhed and fully pald- up shares

Equity shares of Rx. 10 cach (March 31, 2017: Rs. (0 cach, April 1, 2016z Ry, 10 cacl)

42665400 (March 31, 2HT 42,665,400, April 1, 2016 42,665,400) equity sharss of Rs. 10 cach 127 427 327
427 427 427

2:12.3 ReconcRiatinn of ahare capital ontstaniding s¢ ac the bepfaning and at the enid ol ehe vesr

Equity shares of Ra. 18 each (arch 31, 2017 R, [0 each, Aprif 1, 2016z Re, 80 cacl) fully paid up

As ut 31 March 2018 Al a1 31 March 2017

Asat 0L April 2016

Number of (Rx. In million) Nember ol {Rs. in millinp} Numlber of (R4, Int mnifllieny
shares shures shares
Balance a5 ot the beginning of the year [face value of Rs. 10-cach (March 31, 2¢17: Rs. 10 42,665,400 27 42,665,400 127 42,665,400 427
cach, April 1, 2016 s, 10 cach))
Balanee a5 at the end of the year [lece value of Bs. 10 each (March 21, 2017: Rs. 10 eack, 42,665,400 427 42,665 404 427 42,665,400 427

Aprit ], 2016: Rs, 10 cach)]

2.12.4 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares having & par valug of Re. 10 pey share, Each helder of equity shares is entitfed to one vele per share. During the year ended March 31, 2617 the company did net recognise dividend a3 distnbutions te
equity sharcholders, In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holdeas ef equity shares will be entitled te roceive remaining assels of the Company  The distribution will be in proportion 1o the number of equily shares hald Sy ihe sharchalders.

2:t2.5 Drtalls of sharcholders holding mare than 8% shares In the Company,

Asut 3F March 2018 Azt 31 March 2817

Asat DL April 2016

Name of sharehulders Nuniber of Number of shares Number af shares
e of huldinps shares held %% of holdings hieht *a of heldings held

Minda Management Services Limited, Indie 0% 21,332,700 0% 21,3327 ¥ 1,330,060

Vehicle Access Systems Technology LLC, USA 0% 21,332,700 5050 21.332.700 % 21,332,700

42,665 403 42,665400 1668400
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Mindn Vast Access Systems Private Limited

WNotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2018

2.13 Other equity

{Rs. in million)

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2013

As at
31 March 2017

Securities premium reserve
Closing balance

Other comprehensive income - Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans, net

Opeaing batance

Add / (less) : Remeasurement of define benefit obligation

Closing balance

Retain carnings

Opening balance

Add: Net profit for the year
Closing balance

2.13.1 Earning per share

125 125
£25 125
@ .
) @
3) @
215 89
122 126
337 215
459 338

(Rs. in million)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 Mar 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Net profit attribntable to equity sharcholders

Profit after tax

Number of weighted average equity shares
Basic
Dituted

Mominal value of equity share {Rs.}
Earnings per share (Rs.) (Basic)
Eamings per share (Rs.) (Diluted)

2.13.2 Nature and purpose of other equity

= Seeurities premium reserve

12t

42,665,400
42,665,400

124

42,665,400
42,665,400

The unutitized accumulated excess of issue price over face value on issue of shares. This reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

+ Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation comprises actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assets.
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

2.15 Provisions

(Is. in miltion)

As al As ot

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

As at

D1 April 2016

Non-current
Provision for employee benefits

-Gratuity* ] 25
-Compensated absence* 3 10 11

Other provisions
-Provision for warranties (refer to note 2,151 below) i3 10 14
34 22 50

*refer to note 2.15.2

2.15.1 Mevement in warranty cost provision

The Company warrants that its products will perform in all material respects in accordance with the Company's standard specifications for the warranty period.
Accordingly based or specific warranties, claims history, the Company provides for warranty claims. The activity in the provision for warranty costs is as follows:

{Rs. in million)

As at As at As at
. 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 0F April 2016
Particulars
Rs, Rs. Rs,
At the beginning of the year 30 30 23
Provided during the year 3 34 25
Utilised during the year a4) (34) us)
At the end of the year 39 30 30
Current portion 26 20 16
13 10 14

Non- current portion
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H 4) Defined contribution plans
E
The Kompany's sployee peovident Fund and Employech staie insarznce schomes. ane defined sontribution plans, The following kmounts hivy bocn recopnied it expense for the yoar and durwn under Employes benelity expome in
st 27
{Ws. bn mulanry
Farticutarn Forthe yrar anded For thie your ended
11 March 2048 31 Marvh 2017
Cantritution towerds
~Providest fond [k} 14
“Eaployes stads wmurance i H
T 15
b) Teflard bene D1 plans Graioily
In azcontence with the Payerend of Cratuity Avl, 1972, Lhe Coaspamy provides for pratuity m o defined benafit plan. The gratuity plea provides far 2 lump sum paymead to the employeen al s time of syparation [rom the senvice oo
completion of vested period of emplayment i c. five yeam, “The tubility of gratuity plen is provided tared on satuarial valuation ss st the end of cach financial year hased on whick the Company contruies the assertained labilily lo
Lifes Tnsurince Corporition of India by whom the plas suets sre mdained,
{Ra.in eltdon)
Pasdieubirs Far the year ended For thr year ended
31 March 1015 31 Marth 3017
Changes [ the prosent yakae of the defined brathi ohilgation b xs folows:
Presend value of defined benedit obsipation al (e be ginning of b year 32 7
Eatermat vost M N
Acquisition Adjunmen . .
3 Curnent wervice cast 3 3
Pasl servies coul H B
Doncite paid () [<))
Actuarial loss § (gain) on obdigation m 3
2 Frascnt vafuc of dfincd benctit GHigation al the cnd of B pear ] 3
£
I Changes In Tlve present valus af the plan asseéLs 2s faBawar
£ Faie vukee of plan assel a1 the begirming of the year 3
H Retan on phan mact 2
Comiritulicns . 3
Retues ow plan assed excud el : @ .
Renefits puid . .
e, Actuscial (gaim) / lova o0 obligaton . -
Frir vake of plan assen st the end of the your B 3
Reconcillation af the prevent vahur of deflaed beneflz sblipation and the falr vatue of the plan murts
Preaeaz vidoe of defincd bonelit obligation st ta end of the yesr ko 31
Fair vwhuc of plan 33t at thc end of the year i 3
Net liablity ms a1 the close of the yeur Bl @)
) Expenaes recagnized Inthe ssaiement of profie and los:
Currens servioe coul 3 3
Faat senvice coil [ -
Intcrcat conl H H
Expected rrtum oo plan astets @ -
Fxpeeses recognired i the yiatement of profi and ket ) g
Rerurtsarerarns Incunne recopnlaed by ather com prehanstes Tncouie:
Actuariad (338 [0 o e Firad ol chligition m %
Retum oa plen asse excludi gised in nel p H .
Expemes rocognissad in other cowm prechen g ingmic: B 3
Faperience Adfustiment (o} guin:
On defined henefi oltigntion. - T
On plan assct . .
At Atal At
31 March 2015 3% Mareh 3017 L Apeil 2026
Actuarial sseuim pilans:
K Dremnt e TH0% FA0% TH"
g Expecied e of rebem o phan pacts 0.00% 0.00% 2.00%
Expested nadary increase reses YearJ1sd: 10% Vear | 103 0% Vear | o3 0%
Yewrd &5 5% Yeur$ &3 Be Year 3 &3 B
Therealer 6.3% Thoroafler & 3% Therealler & 5%
Mortatity 10070l EALM 200608 100% of IALM 2006-08 108% of IALM 00508
Ermployee stisition e
-Up1a 30 yesn of sge 12000 12o0% 12o0%
+Froms 31 yean of ags o 44 years of age 200% 200t 2oty
-Aheve 44 yea of age 100% 5.00% 5.00%
Naer:

The cutiviates of falure salary incranes eomidertd in the asblarial vabntion Lake into weeound inflation, seciiority, promation sad other telovent fagsors 1uch &s supply ked demand i the emplaymenl market

The di i d tased oa th iling assices yiekds of wecurition a3 &t the balince theet datz foe the ertimated Lerms of the obligstion
Eaprtienge gzain/ () an PG and Plan Assitr £3tn, In mlHan,
[rartkculars (Hey I March 2014] 31 March 2015 31 Aarrh 2016] 3§ March 2017] 31 Alarrh 2

F0n Plan Prescrd Yalue of Oblizaton 1 | T | . !
O Plia Atnes - 1 | | | T

t
§
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Sentlthity analys

Remsonably porribls changes sk the reporting daic 10 e of Ihe reievsnl schunrial holding ot 2 wauhd have affected the define bencfit obligation by Us fiown bel
Fof the yrar snded For Lhe y4ur snded
JE March 2018 31 March 2017
Zisethind Dacrnise Intredse Drecreasd
Divsount rale { -1+ 1% 35 3 E )
@ % 5.3% (8 3070 9.
Futire nalary growth { - 1+ %) 31 s 1 ]
T £130m) 3% (6.00%)
Moriality raic { - + 10% of mortality mten} 3 3 2 32
0.3% {0.10%) 01% (8 104
Atsition rate - + 30% of ntition feiev} » 5 b3} 30
1i% 804 40k (6.30%)
Abbough the anatyuin does not take inta account of the fult diviribulion of carh Mows expected under the plan, i doss nat provide ion of the I the assumpions shaun.
Maturity peofiles
Th Wbl bebow shown the cxpested sash Now profiie of the benefis fa be patd to the evrment ip of the plan bancd of he e ar wt e vakustion date:
AN In miflon]
E Aswl
St March 2613 31 Morch 3017
T yewr 1 ES
215y n 12
§10 103man 17 11
Hiore thas 19 yeans 0 @

Although Gae ansfyuit doca pot ke it moount el the Bl diribution of cuah [hus expoctod undes the plin, B ot not prawidks an appeocimetioe of the Leneitvity of the sssamptions shawn,

©Other fong term braefi - Compensaled aburners

The Compeny operstes campemated abnenses pharL whers in cvery employes w entitled Lo L benefit as per the policy of the Campeny in ths regend The satary for caloulation of eamcd leave is lasl drawn salary The sams 1 payshéc

daring the senvice, carly retirement, wihiaal ef scherns, cexignation by employ e and upon death of eployer.
An sctusriat valustion of Comperaated Kaence b breon carmiod ovt by wn independond actumry o0 the basis of the [ollowing assumptions:

Asal "
Amcriprlors At March 3005 31 March 3047 a1 Apeil 2016
Diaauat itz T90% 1.70%
Expected salury incresse rates Vear | 803: 10% Yexr 1123 10% Yeur @ ls 3 0%
Year 4 2 3 BV Year 4.2 3. 87
Thereafler 6.3% Thersalter 6.3
Mortality 1004 o TALM 2005.08 1002 6£ IALM 200608 0% el JALM 2006.08
Emphoyes sttrition rate
U 1030 yean of 1 12004 1200 12,000
“From 7t yeur ol age 1> 44 years oFige B0 2.00% 400
&t 44 pears ol age 3.00% L00% 500%e

The other Toag- lerr benclit of sova ponnated atwmense in repect of employees of the Company s ot 31 Alar 2018 emounts 1o R 3777723 (March 33, J017: R 2396487, Apeil 1, 2016 Ra 7960933 ) and the experse recagraed i the

sltermeond of prord (D111 and fess during he year for Ihe szme amaunts to Hs. 6721255 (March 35, 20174 Ru1313058), Apnt

Servitbity anatndi:

16 Re.18.684,150) {Gross payment of e 1020896 (larch 31, 2017 8 Nl Apnl 1, 2016- R 8y

itle changes sithe dute 10 0 of the relexsnl actusrisl o, Boldi - would bave affcted

Reascoably

For the yrur ended
Mareh 51,2018

Feor the yrur ended

March 31,2817

dncrease Deereaus lacrvare Desrense
Dicountrate{+ 1+ 1) 1% < -
a0t
ot cabary gromia g -7 + 1%) 8 . -
304
Mortality rate { - ¢ ¢ 10%of mortality rates} [} . -
o0 . -
Almibon iz (= # + 30% of miion relcr 15
(3.20%) . .
Akboagh the analyms docy not ke tstion of cath ik the plan, 3 dons rot provide ion af h
Afatuslty profite:
The tablo bebow shows the expoted carh Tlow profile of tha tenefis 1 b il 1o the curreml memberbip of the plan beassd on pust venice of the ciploytrs as af the vahiation date:
(R, In mittlon)
31 Alarch 318 3L ALareh 2017
1 year 1 ]
2 Syon ] L]
6w 10 yan 7 v
Mave than 10 years 7 7
Althoagh the analyuis docs not ke of the full distribution of cash Bows expreeted wnder the plan, & does 5ot provide an imation of t ty of the shown.

) Risk B poaure
Thaough its definesd benefit plam, Ihe Compeny in expoved 12 2 namber of riaks, the movtsignificant of which are detailed below:
2) Auet volai iy

The plan Habalitics ars: colestutod wring u iscowat role 3ot teith refcrense 1 bon yickh: i plan asaets undorperform Whin yickh thin will creste & defieit, Mot of the phut anset irmestments s 1n Fived inserte sevuritics with high geaden
i govemment securiticn. Thesc arc subject lo intereat rats risk and the fund mansges incesst e risk with derivatives to mvinimize fuk 1o ko ssceptable Jevek A portion ofthe funda are invertzd b cquity securities and in altemative
imvertmenits which have low comelation with equity sscurities, The equity securities ore etpected fo corm u rhsrm in excest of the discaunt e wid Sordribte 10 the plan deficit, The Company intends (o msintain the sbove investment
it in e contituing yean,

by Chauges in dhrant bntr

A deercaie b dicount tale wwill merciss plas fibilitscs, skhough this sl be parally et b i the vabie of the pl

) Infatlen riika

in the plans, the paymenl ars not knkeid 1 1ha inflstson 10 D is & lows matenatrak:
d) Life expectary

The las bl igatices ace & v benefits for e 1fe of Ghe mctber, 40 kncrcince in Rfe expeeiancy will feaul in o cecine in the placed’ Habilikien, This w particularty sig here inllationary it e Bigher ettty
tochange in life expectaney

Thet Comarty crtsard that the ieveatmbont ronitkbie Ar¢ riarut ged withia by auact Exbiliry spatchng (ALM) fram cwovk that Bt beon devloped 19 achasta Jong fer isvwstnents that are in ing with the obligations under the caployes
berefu plew, Wikin this fresewonk, the Coaipany ALM objective is 10 rasich uicts o the cbligationt by investing in lang-terma fixed inlereel srcurities with mazurities that murch the henefis paymenns as they fadl due and in the
Rpproprisic cumoncy

The Campany atively mioniiars hoss (he daration and fhe expeeiad yicld of e favesiments mo matching the exposted cash oulfiows armieg frent the esployee besefil obligations. The Company has nal chunged the processes wed 1o
manage i risks from previcus perios, Fhe Company uses derivatives 1o manage some of its risk. Jvestments are well divensifiod, vuch that the failure of any single imvestment would nol have s material impact ca the overall level of
wats,
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

2,16 Trade payables

{Rs. in million)

Partcul Asat Asat As at
Ariedars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 11 April 2016
Trade payables
Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer to note 2.16.1) G $ -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 332 290 323
Trade payables to related parties 79 69 il
417 367 I

2.16.1 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medivm Enterprises Bevelopment Act, 2006

Based on the information availsble, there are certain vendors who have confirmed that they are covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 Disclosures

as required by section 22 of *The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, ate given below:

(Rs. in million}

%.No, Particulars

Asat
31 March 2018

Asat
31 March 2087

Asat
41 April 2016

(i)  the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of year
« Principal amount 5 7 10
- Tnterest thercon 1 i -
4 i £
(i3} theamount of tnterest paid in terms of seetion 16, along
with the amounts af the payment made to the suppliers
beyond the appointed day:
- Principal amount 69 62 71
- Interest thereon - - -
69 62 71
(i)  theamount of interest due and payable for the year of -
delay in making payment {which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under this Act 1 i
1 i -
(iv)  the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid. | 1 -
1 1 -
(v}  The amount of further interest remaintng due and payable
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actuzlly paid to the small
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expendituze under seerion 23 of this Act ] ! -
1 1 -
2.17 Other current financial lizbilities
(Rs. in milkion)
Particulars Asat Asat As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 01 April 2016
Current maturities of term loans (refer nete 2.14) - ] ]
Salaries, wages and bonus payable 15 22 19
Creditors for capital items 49 18 2
Royalty Payable i i 1
G5 49 13

2,18 Orber curreat liabilities

(Rs. in million)

Particul Asat As at As al
Artieiars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 01 April 2016
Statutory dues payable 7 6 14
Advances from customers 39 80 24

46 %6 38

2.19 Curreent provisions

{Rs. in million)

Particulars

Asal
31 blarch 2018

As At
31 March 2017

As al
01 April 2016

Provision for employee benefits

~Grauity* 3 3 2
-Compensated absence* 4 2 1
Others
-Provision for warranties (refer to note 2.45.1) 26 20 i6
33 25 21
*refer to note 2.15.2
2.20 Current tax liabilities
{Rs. in million)
Particul As at As at Asat
Artieurars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 01 April 2016
Proviston for ingome tax [net of advance income tax Rs. 37 million (March 31, 2617
Rs. 37 millicn, April 1, 2016: 62 million)) 35 6 13
3 [] 13
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

2.22 Revenue from operations

(Rs. in million)

Particulars

Sale of products
Manufactured goods

Other operating revenucs

-Sale of scrap

-Service income

-Exchange fluctuations {net)

-Duty draw back and other export benefits
Other operating revenues
Revenue from operations

2.23 Other Income

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

2,595 2,756
2,593 2,756
3 3

9 9

4 4

- i
16 17
2,611 2,773

{Rs. in million)

Particulars

For the year ¢nded
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Interest income:
-on fixed deposits
-on others-MSEB
Provisions/tiabilities no fonger required, written back
Profit on sale of investments
MTM on fair valuation of investments
Rental income
Recovery of Doubtful Debt
Dividend Income
Miscellzneous income

2.24 Cost of materials consumed

16 17
i 69
i -
| -

1 -

5 4
7 g
42 98

{Rs. in million)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Raw materials consumed (includes packing material and components)

Opening stock
Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Closing stock

85 91
1,732 1,686
1,817 1,776

84 85
1,733 1,692




Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

2.25 Changes In Inventories Of Finished Goods, Stock In Trade And Work In Progress

{Rs. in million)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Finished goods and stock in trade

Opening stock

Less: Closing stock

Imipact of excise duty on increase / (decrease) in finished goods
Work in progress

Opening stock
Less: Closing stock

Increase / {Decrease) in inventories

2.26 Employee Benefits Expense

39 58
47 39
8 (19)
- (n
37 34
25 37
(12) 3
4) {15)

{Rs. in million)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Salaries and wages
Contribution to

- Provident fund and other funds

- Gratuity fund (refer note 2.15.2b)
Staff welfare

265 265
14 14
9 5
15 17
303 301




Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

2.27 Finance Costs

{Rs. in niillion)

Particulars

For the year ended Tor the year ended

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Interest expense:
on borrowings from banks
on borrowings from others

2,28 Other Expenses

{Rs. in million)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Jobwaork charges 23 22
Consumption of stores and spare parts 19 14
Power and fuel 27 28
Packing charges 22 24
Rent 14 18
Testing and designing expenses 9 10
Repairs- buildings 9 8
Repairs- plant and machinery g 11
Repairs others 7 [
Travelling and conveyance 27 31
Legal and professional 22 17
Communication 3 3
Bad debts - 13
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 1 -
Management fees 37 36
Insurance 5 5
Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on income 3 3
Warranly expenses 23 34
L.oss on sale/discard of fixed assets (net) 2 2
Advertisement and business promotion - 1
Royalty 4 6
Freight and forwarding 27 23
Corporate social responsibility 3 2
Sale Service Expenses 4 4
Miscellancous i35 12
315 333

2.28.1 Research and development expenses **

The Company has incurred following expenditure on its inhouse R & D Center :

{Rs. in million)

Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Lresign & Development Exp

Salaries

Coniribution to provident fund and other funds
Travelling and conveyance

Legal and professional

Testing Expenses

Miscellaneous

Rs, Rs.
3 2
33 17
3 |
2 2
5 -
1 4
- 1
47 27

*+ Excluding finance costs, depreciation, amortisation and impairment. Capital expenditure incurred on approved R & D
center during current financial year is Rs. 22 million (March 31, 2017; Rs. 6 million, April 1, 2016; Rs, 2 million).



MHnda Yast Access Syaters Privaie Limlicd
o Notes (o the financial statementa for the year ended 3§ March 2018

2,39 Capltal and vller esnuniliments

Capital Commitments: Eximated emeunt of sootmels remaining la bo rxecuted on capital acount and net pravided foe (net of sdvances) Rs.42 million (March 31, 2017 Re.G million, April 1, 2016: 1325 mullion)

239 Coatingent labilities

g (R In miliion)
Particutars 3l ,u?ﬁ.’:ms M “:::hxm” a] .\“E:I: ltﬂls
Clalms agsinst the Company not acknowledged as debits
W Income-tax (Refer note a below} e E 16
by Sales (ax/ VAT - 2 2%
¢ ) Excise duty / Service Tax - - -

u. Contingent lisbility represeals dispuled income tax demands pertaining to AY 2008-2009, 2010-11, 2011-12 and 2015-15 arising from disaliowsaces of he Company's ciaim of certain expenses wnd penelly impeszd there
o under bncome Tnx Act, 1961 The Company belicves that such claims are sliewable and hay filed the neoessary appeals with refevanl authorities

While the ultimate ootcone of the sbove mentioned sppeals canndt be ascortained ot this time, based oo curreal knoadedpe of the spplicable law, manapemeat believes that thess Law suits should set bave a mateein] adverse
clfzct an the Company’s (inancsl statements of its busineas eperations.

Bank guarantees
- To customers ngainst advances
- To MNOL for piped gas connection
« To MPCB for consent renewnf

231 Accounting for leases
Rental expenses in respeet of eperating leases are recognized as an expease in the statement of profil and dos.

Operatingleases- As a feasee
The Cempany has entered intn Gpesaling lease arranprment for podowns, and fictoty premizes. There are no nen canceflable lease agroements enitered by the company These epreements are mncelfable and fmpose no
restrictiont ou e Company. Lease reat charged for he peoriod amounking to Rs. L million (March 31, 2017: Rs 3 million Aprit 1, 2016: Rs 3 millicn) is recognized in the staiement of profit and loss.

2.3 Helated Party Disclosures

A} Related parties and nature of related party eelationabip with whem fons taken place during the year
a3 Key Mahagerial Personriel Mr Himansho Jain - { President froa 28 Apeil 2016)
Mr Mahendra Maredi ( CFO & Company Sceretary)
- My Kishos 13, Kamataki ~(Managing Ditector upto 19 Apnl 2016)
u Entetprise ity which dicretors of he Company and theif telalives are Minda Carporation Limited, India
able loexercise signifcant influence; Minda Silea Enginccring Limited, India

Minda S1oncridge Instruments Limited, Indin
Minda Sai Limited, lndin

Minda Automative Solutiens Limited., ladia
e GZ Minda [LC, Usbckistan

PT. Miada Autometive- Indonesin

€) Judnt Ventare Minda Management Scrvces Limited, India
Vehicle Acoess Systems Technology LLC, USA




Minda Yast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes 1o the financial statements for the y2ar ended 315t March 2083

B) Details of related party transactions during the year and outstanding balagee at the year end ¢

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2018

(Rs. in million

For the year ended

31 March 2017

a) Revenue
Eunterprise i which directors oM he Company and their velatives aie able to exercise significant influence:

Sale of products
- Minda Corporalion Limited
- Minda Silca Engineering Limited
- Minda Automotive Sclution Limited
- 0°Z Minda LLC, Uzbekistan.
- PT. Minda Awromotive- Indonesia

Service bncome
PT. Mirda Automotive- Indonesia

Reimabursement of expenses received
- Mirua Corpuration Limited
» Minda Stoneridge Insiruments Limiled
- Minda Sil¢a Engincering Limiled
- Minda Management Services Limited
- PT. Minda Aulomolive- [ndonesia

Key Management Personueb:

Sale of fixed assets
Mr. Kishor D, Kamataki {Managing Dircctor upio 19 April 2016)

b) Expenses
Enterprise in which divectors of the Company znd their relatives are able to exercise significant inMuence:

Purchase of goods
- Minda Corporaticn Limited
- Minda Silca Engincering Limited
- Minda Sai Limited

Repair & Maintenance
- Minda Corporation Limited
« Minda Silca Engincering Limited

Job work ¢charges
- Minda Corporation Limited
- Minda Silca Engineering Limited

Legal and professional fees
- Minda Corporaticn Limited
- Minda Stonaridge Ingleuments Limited
- Minda Managemem Serviees Limited
- Minda Automolive Solulion Limited

Reimbursenent of expenses
- Minda Corporalion Limited
- Minda Stonerdge Instruments Limited
- Minda Managemeni Services Limited

13
Tt

234

276
3y

i6
6

251
67



Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes 1o the finaocial statemnents for the year ended 31st March 2018

B) Details of re*ated party transacdions during the year and outstéanding balance at the year end :

(Rs. in millien)}

Particulars 31 March 2018

Far (e year ended

For the year ended
31 Marchi 2017

Joint Venture

Management fees
- Minda Management Services Limited
-Vehicle Access Systems Technology LLC, USA

Legal and professional fecs
« Minda Managemenl Services Limited

Reitnbursement of experses
- Minda Management Services Limited

Key Managenient Personnel:
Rennmeration
- Mr. Himanshu Jain®
- Mr. Mahendm Naredi®
- Mr. Kishor D. Kamataki (Managing Director upto 19 April 2016)*

0 Excludi;-n_:; value of prequisiles of tefephone at residence, Car and reimbursement of expenses on conveyance, prefessional pursuil and wnzform,
Exclusive of provision for fulure liabilies in zespect of grawity and leave encashment which are based on actural valuation done on overll company basts,

C) Quistanding Balauces pertaining to related parties

13

13

{IRs. in miltion}

As at Asat

-
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

As at
01 Aptil 2016

Euterprise in which directors of the Company and their relatives are able to exercise significant influence:

Trade receivables
- Minda Corporation Limited 3
-~ Minda Autornotive Solution Limited -
- ('Z Minda LLC, Uzbekistan -
- Minda Sa: Limited -
- Minda Silea Engingering Limiled -
- PT. Minda Automalive- [ndonesia 40

Trade payables
- Minda Corporation Limited T5
- Minda Silca Engineering Limiled 4
- Minda Saf Lismited -
- Minda Automolive Solution Eimited -

Jaint Venture ;

“Trade payables
- Minda Management Services Limited G
- Vehicle Access Systems Technology LLC, USA -

Key Management Personnel:
- Mz, Mr. Kishor D, Karnataks (Managing Director upto 19 Aprit 2016) -
- Mr. Mahendra Naredi -

61
[

6



Afimla Vast Aecess Systems Private Limited
WNotes 1o the finendal atatemenis for the year ended 3E March 2018

33 Auditors’ Remuneration (Esceding Service Tar)

Legat 2nd profeaslinal exprense ncdudes amdilon® ax fllowa: (He la o]

Prvticalars For tie year ndrd For the year ended
3 March 2618 H March 2017

" Statutory audis 1 t
Reimburscment of expesses . .

2.3 During the current year, a3 required under scction 135 of the Act, the Company has speni Ra. 3 milkion (March 31, 2017: Rs2 million) (owards the corporate social mspansibility (CSI sctivily). Relevant diselosures for
amount 16 be spen? vis n viz amount spenl during Ihe year are asbelow

_ B InMilllog
For the yeat epded Foc the year ended
31 Mazch 2018 31 Afareh 2017
He T,
A Gravs zmaunt required o be spend by the Company 3 2
)i}] Amwunt spent duzing the vear eaded 31 Mar 2018
S Na Project! Acthvity £aid I canh Vet lobe paid Toual (Re. in miklion)
i Schelarship distribution 1o atudomit of aakarshan - - -
2 Medical healih chek up plan and vacane dislabution - - -
3 Tree Plantstion - . .
4 Waler filter and Tube I installation in Dheade - - -
5 Computes Literacy and spoken english programme for aakarshan cenier 1 - 1
& Astificzal limb fitment camp for disable "sakeham™ 2 - 2
Total 3 - 3
B2 Amount spent daring the vear ended 31 March 2017
& No. Drojectf Activity Taid in cash Yot to be paié Total {Rs, 30 millivn}
. Eyc Camp B . -
2 Waer Purilier system installation 1 - 1
3 Borewell Construction i 1
4 Book distributicon in Akarshan school - . -
3 Tree Plantation in Nighoje Village . . .

‘Tetal 2 - I
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Notes to the SHnanclal statementa for the year ended 31 March 2018

required by the lrmru pnnng Jegistation under section 92-92F af the bacome Tax Act, 1961 Since the law requires
Fioe the eitered 1o with the sssocistel nme:pmcs during the

235 Tho Company has established 8 contg g wyalerd of mail of i jon and
exisionee of such i 3 d tabe in nature, tho Company is in the process af
Enanaal year and expects sich recards fo be in exasenes latest by dus date ax zequured tnder Lhe law The fanagement 18 of the opinion that 1e gantacticons with the acsociated eafeaipnses are 3t am's lengdh so thal the

aforesaid legiatation will nol kave any impact o 1he financial statements, panticulary on the amouat of tax expenze and that of provision for lnation

136 Acper Ind-AS 108, Opcruting sepmenls have been defined bascd en the regalat review by the Company's Chicl Cperating llcmm Mker b assess ho rfivtancs of eseh segument and 15 ake decision abeut allocaticn of
resources, The Company businexs activities fall within single pritiaty business sagment, viz, of. & Parts Lhervol. Accoedingly, discl under nd AS 108. Operating Segments are

nat tequired to be made.
Dxetail of revenns from operation of year cod, property, plant snd equipment and inlangible assets are as followy:
. in millim}
B I For the year ended Fer ihe year ended
atlon 31 Marels 2618 3t March 2017
Revenuc from operalim
Drxtigstic 233 2R
Orersear
Asia (exctuding domestic) 243 22
Curope ] 8
Total FEi1 2.773
(R in millioa)
Asat Asat Asatl
Location 3 March I0IR 31 Aarch 3617 01 Al 3016
Carrying amount of assets
Doestic 1416 1299 ]
Orarscar
Asin (exluding docestic) 63 15 12
Furope 5 4 7
Total 1387 1521 1,180
(R i mlllion)
A I For the year ended For the year endel
AdiRtion of P'rapetty, plant aral equipment ahd intargible assets e s
Domestic
- Propenty, plant and cquipment 0% kil
~ Intangible fined nsscly 2 4
137 EX)
Overacas
- Fropeniy. plant and equipment - -
- Intangible fined nsscls . .
Segment revenue in th i idered for disclasure is a5 follmssss

+ Revenue within Lm!u( Dcmgm:) mr.hn!e sale lo quslomess located within India, and
= Revenue cuttide ladia {Ohverscas)incude sl of products monufactared in india tocustomers located outside India.
Segment apscuin tha phical dered for disclasure rep axxcls Iocnie oulsids India and sundey debtor balances agatast export sales from bndia epertions

237 The Company has a process wherehy periodically all fong lerm contracts sre mssessed for material forcseeable ossea. A the year end, 1he Company kas rexiewed and roted 1hat there are no forcrecable losses cu fong term
eomlesety. Accordingly, no provision iz reguired to be created in the books of aceount under any law 1 aeoounting sandords.
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Minda Yast Access Systems Private Limited
Noles 10 the financial statements for the year crded 31 March 2618

3% F Fair vl sk

a Financhaf instruments = by category and fair valoes hierazchy

Hlowing tabic shows the carmy and fair value of financial asscts and Mnsncial liabiliticx, meuding their fevels in the fair value hicrarchy.

L Ason Apsif1, 2016

Nartioutam Cazriing value Cait value nieasureinent uxlig
TIL FvOCcT Amartised cust Tatal Levell Level2 Level}
Fir .nclal assets
Nop-current
{iy Loam . . 4 4 - - .
Current
(i) Trade roceivables - - 62 62 - - -
(ii) Cash and cash cquivalonts - . 11t n - - .
Cfify Caher bank balanees - - 50 0 . + -
(iv) Other faancial assets - - 2 2 - - .
Tolsk - - 429 429
Financial labilitics
Non-carrent
Domowings - - 10 I - - .
Current
) Trade payables - - k2] e - - -
(i) Other finarcial Labilities - . k5 33 - - .
Total - - 457 412
i Ason March 3L 2017
Pacticulars Carring value Fair valus pirasurement uslng
EVTI'L. Fyoct Ansorrised cos1 “Toral Level § Tesel2 lavel 3
Financial assets
Nen-turrent .
(i, Loans - . 4 4 - - .
Current
(i} investmenis 100 . - 100 100 .- .
(ii) Trade receivables - - 185 185 B - .
{iir) Cash and cash equivalents - - 25 25 - -
(iv) Other bank balances - - pA%) 34 - .
[v) Other Nnancial axscts - - 13 13 - - -
Total H - 461 261
Flnancal lfa
Non-current
Horrwings - . 1 i - -
Cureent
(i) Trado payabier . . 61 67 . . .
GiYOther financial liabilities - . 48 4 . .
Total - - 416 ils
4k Ason March 31,2015
(It In millios)
Fartiulars Carrving value Fair value measurement wing
FVTPE o Antortised cost Total Leved 1 loevel 2 level 3
Flaancial assers
Noa-current
{i} Loans - - 4 4 - .
Curcent
0} Investrents® 133 . B 154 154 B
i} Trade reeivables - m Erdl B B
- - & 23 . . .
- - 151 151 . . .
{v) Other Gnancial assets - - 11 1l . . .
Tutal 154 - 483 607
Financial Eabilities
Non-current
Bormwings - - 1 1 - - -
-Current
() Trade paynbles - - 417 <17 . . -
(ii) Onher Ninzncial liabilities v + 3 a6 . . .
Total : - 484 34
The management assessed that the fair vatues of short lemm Nnancial asscts and lisbilities aignificantly approximale their camying amounts targely duue 10 the short-tens matuntics of the: A digly, has pot disdosed [ vatpes oy
Tinancial instruments suck es trade neceinables, trade payables, cash and carh equivalents. other currenl asseds. interest acerued oa lxed deposits, other current latilities cte.
“The fair value of the Mnaeial syscty and labilities is included al the ameunt al which i} i by H d int a current i willing pattics, ether than in a forced of liquadation sale.

There have been 80 trzrsfers boinveen Levet |, Leved 2 and Levet 3 For the years evded March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 and Apsil |, 2016

ValuaBeh trchnige ised tu detemine friv value
Specific valuation lechniques used ts value pon current Financul nescis and liabilitics for whom the fair vatues have been Gelemmined based an present valucs and the appropraic discount mtes of the Company af cach kalance shect date The diiconnt tate 1s based

o0 the Wweightrd avermge cost of bormmimgs of the Company at each balancs sheet date

Valuation processes
The Company has blished control with respect ta the of the fair vatues. This in¢fudes a valuation team that has overall iespoasibility for oversecing all sgmficant fair value measarements oad reports fa Sear Mansgemen Tl

regularly reviews sgruficant njrals nad valoahon sdjstmicns.

b. Finsncial risk mansgement

The Company has exposure ta the following tisks arising from financial instuments,
-Credissisk ;

« Liguidity risk ; and

- Market risk - Foreim exchange

=Market risk - nfecest rate

Rk manapement framework

The Company's boasd of directors har oversll respousibitity for the establishavemt and oversight of the Company's risk management framewotk. The bosrd of directors have suthorissd seniof i gesnent o ealablivh the processcs, who ensures that exceutive
mansgeiment somtrols zisks through Ihe mcchanism of propaly defived lramework.

The Comp risk peliaes are 1o ideaitify rod mnalyse the risks faced by the Company. o sct apprepriale risks limits and controls, to moniter nisks ad sdfrerence 1o fimits. Risk management poficies are reviewed regulaly to reflect
changes inmarkel conditans and the Campany's activities. The Company, through its srining apd management standards and procedures, aims 10 msintain 2 discipined and iive control wn which slk ey thet rodes 2
cbligations.
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

b. Finangiad risk maragement {continued)

(i} Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financinl assets in the Balance Sheet:

{Rs. in million)

Particulars

As it March 31, 2018 | AsatMarch 38,2017 | Asat April L2H6
Trade reccivables 223 185 263
Cash and eash equivalents 65 25 1
Other bank balances 51 234 30
Loans 4 4 4
Other finaneial assels 11 13 2

Credit risk is the risk ¢f financial Joss to the Company il a customer or counterparty to 2 financial instrurenl fails to meet its contractual abligations, and
arises principally from e Conpany’s reecivables ffom customers, {oans.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited ns the Company gencrally invests in deposits with banks with high ¢redit ralings assigned by domestic

<redil rating agencies.

The maximum exposure to the credil risk at the reporting dale is primasily from trade receivables. Trade receivables are unsecured and are decived from
sevenue camed from cuslomers primarily located in India, The Company docs sonitor the cconomic environment i which it operates. The Company
manages its credil risk through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continwously menitoring ¢redil worthiness of cnstomers lo which the
Company grants credil terms in the normal course of busingss,

Credit risk kas always been masnaged by the Company theough credit approvals, establishing credit limils and conlinucusly monitoring the
ereditwerthi, 355 of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal <curse of business. On account of adaption of lnd AS 109, the
Company uses expected credit foss (ECL) model to assess the impainnent loss or gain. The Company uses a provision malrix 1o conipule the expeeted
credit Joss allowance for wrade seceivables and unbilled revenues. The provision matrix lakes inte aceount available extemal and intemal credit risk factors
such ag Company’s histerical expericnce for customers, The reversal for lifetime expected credil loss on customer balances for the year ended March 31,
2018 was Rs. | million. The reversal for lifctime expected credit loss on customer batanees for the year ended Mareh 31, 2017 was Rs, 18 million,

Movement in the doss aflowance in respect of trade receivabies:

Balance at the end of {he year

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Balance a1 the begimting of the vear i 1%
Impairnicnd foss recognised / {reversed) [4)] {18}
Amounl written off - i

3

As at 31 March 2018

8) Expeeted eredit loss fer Joans and scourily deposits

{Rs, i million}

credil risk has increased
significantly and credit -

impaired

Particulass Asstt geoup Estimated gross Expected probability [Expecied  creditjCarrying amount net
carrying amount at of default 055 ol impairment
defrult provision

Loss altowance mcasured ol 12 month cxpoctcd | Financial assets for which | Loans to employee 1 0% - 1
cred loss credit risk has not increased {Security Deposits q 0% - 4
significantly since initial
recognlion
Loss allowanece measured at lifg-time expecied [Financial assets for which  [NA NA NA NA NA
credil loss credit risk has increased
significantly and not eredit -
P
Financial assets for which  [NA NA NA NA NA
credit risk has increased
significantly and eredit -
Asat 3t March 2017 {Rs. in million}

Particolars Assel group Estimated gross Expected probability jExpeeted credil‘Czlrr ing amaunt net
carrying amount at of deflant loss of impairment
default s

Loss allowance measured at 12 month expected{Financial assets for which  {Loans 1o ¢aployee L 0% - 1
credil loss credil risk has nol increased {Sceurity Deposils 4 0% - q
significantly since iitial
Loss allowance measured at fife-time expecied |Financial assets for whigh  [NA NA NA NA NA
credil logs credil risk has increased
significantly and not eredit -
impaired
Financial assels for which  [NA NA NA NA NA

b) Expeeted eredit loss (or trade receivables under simplified approach

The Company's exposure to credit risk For teade recedvables is as follows:

(Rs. in million)

Gross earrying amount

Particulars As at March 31,2018 | Asat March 31,2017 | Asat April 1, 2016
Current (nol past due) 176 163 224
1 to 30 days past due 26 13 48
31 (0 60 days past due 19 3 3
Gl (090 days past duc 1 B 2
More than 90 days past due 1 H 3
Expecled credil losses {Loss allowance provision) - 1 18
Carrying amount of trade receivables {net of impairment) 223 185 263
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Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statemends for the year ended 31 March 2018

In Financial risk nianagement (continued)

i) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk s the risk that the Company will cncounter difficulty in meeting 1hic obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are sestled by delivering cash or anotber financial asset. The
Comipany’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its fiabilitics when they are falfen due, under both nermal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or sisking damage to the Company's repmiation.

The Company believes that its liquidity position, including total cash and cash equivalent and bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalent of Rs.216 million as at March 31, 2018 (March 31,
2017 Rs.259 million, April 1, 2016 Rs.161 million), anticipated future internally gererated funds from operations, and its fully available, revolving undrawn credit facilisy wiil enable it to meet its
future known obligations in the ordinary course of business. However, if a liguidity needs were to arise, the Company believes it has access to financing armangements, value of unencumbered assets,
which slould enable it to meet its ongeing capital, operating, and other liquidity requirements. The Company will continue to consider various borrowing or leasing options to taximize liquidity and

supplement cash requirements as necessary.

The Company’s liquidity management process as monitored by management, includes the following:
- Day to day funding, mansged by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met,
- Maintaining rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity pasition on the basis of expected cash fiows.

- Maintaining diversified credit lines.

L. Fingncing arrangements

The company had access 1o the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period;

{Rs. in million}

Particulars

As at
March 31,2018

Asat
March 31,2017

As at
March 31, 2016

Froin Banas - Short Tern

270

270

276

From banks - Leng Term

II, Maturities of financiaf liabilitics
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reperting date, The amounts are gross and undiscounted:

{Rs. in million)

As at Aprit 1,2016

Contraciual cash flows

Carrying amount { 6 months or less 6-12 manths 1-2 years 2-5 years More than Total
5 years
Non-current liabilities
Financial Habilitics - Borrowings 10 4 4 1 10
Current liabilitics
Financial liabilitics - Borrowings 11 11 - - 1l
Trade payables 374 374 - - 3
Other financial liabifities 33 33 - - 33
Total 428 423 4 1 429
(Rs. in million)
As ot Ma-ch 31,2017 Contractual cash Hows
Carrying antount | 6 months or less 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5years More than Totzl
5 years

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities - Borrowings 1 1 - - |
Current liabilities

Financial liabilitics - Bomrowings 8 8 - - 8
Trade payables 367 367 - - 367
Other financial Eabilitics 49 49 - - 49
Total 424 424 - - 424

{Rs. in million}

As at March 31,2018

Carrying amount

Contractual cash flows

6 months or less

6-12 manths

1-1 years

2-3 years

More than
S vears

Fotab

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilitics - Borrowings 1 - - 1 1
Current Fabilities

Financial liabilitics - Borrowings B - - - N
Trade payables 417 417 - - 417
Other Baancial liabilities G5 63 - - 65
Total 483 482 - 1 483
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

b. Financial risk management
(iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fulure cash Hows ofa financial instrument wilk fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises
two types of risk: currency risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Currency risk

Curreney risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument wiil fluctuate because of changes in forzign exchange rates. The
Company is exposed to the effects of fluctvation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.
Exposure arises primarily due to exchange rate fluctuations between the functionai currency and other currencies from the Company's operating,
investing and firancing activities.

Exposure to eurrency risk

The sunmary of quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk, as expressed in Indian Rupees, as at March 31, 2018, March 31,
2017 ang Aprnl 1, 2016 are as below:
{Rs, in million)

Particulars As ot March 31, 2018
USD EURO JPY

Financial assets
Trade receivables 1 - -

Financial liabilities

Trade payables - - -

{Rs. in million)
Particulars As af March 31, 2017

UsD EUGRO JPY

Financial assets
Trade receivables . - -
Financial linbilities
Trade payables “ - -

(Rs. in millien)

Particulars As at April 1, 2016
Usp EURO JPY

Financial assets
Trade receivables - - -

Financinl linbilities
Trade payables - - 1

§ .asitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against below curvencies at March 31, 2018 (previous year ended as on
March 31, 2017) would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in functional currency and affected equity and profit
or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is performed on foreign currency denominated monelary financial assets and financial
liabilities outstanding as af the year end. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any
impact of forecast sales and purchases.



(Rs. in million)

Particulars

Profit or loss

Equity, nct of tax

Strengthening Weakening

Strengthening Weakening

1% depreciation / appreciation in Iadian Rupees against following
foreign currencies:

For the year ended March 31, 2018
ush
EUR
JPY

For the year ended March 31, 2087
Usp
LUR
IPY

USD: United States Dollar, EUR; Euro, JPY: Japanecse Yen




Minda Vast Aceess Systems Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for tiie year ended 31 March 2018

b. Finaucial risk management (continued)

(iii) Market risk

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of'a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s main interest rale
rigk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk arises majorly from the term loans from banks carrying floating rate of interest. These obligations exposes the Company to cash flow
interest rate risk. The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

{Rs, in million)

Variable-rate instruments As at As at Asat
Mareh 31,2018 | March 31,2017 | April 1, 2016

Term luans £.om banks (Non current) - 1 10
Term loans from banks (Current) - 8 11
Total - 9 21

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

{Rs. in million}
Particulars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax

50 bps
30 bpsincrease | 50 bps decrease | 50 bps inerease |decrease

Intercst on term loans from banis
For the year ended March 3§, 2018 - N - -
For the year ended March 31, 2017 - - - -

Interest on public deposits
For the year ended March 31, 2018 - - - -
For the year ended March 31, 2017 - - - -

1. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capitat management, capital includes issued equity share capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the parent. The primary abjective of the management of the Company’s capital structure is to maintain an efficient mix of debt and equity in order to achieve a
low cost of capital, while taking into account the desirability of retaining financial flexibility to pursue business opportunities and adequate access to liquidity to mitigate
the effect of unforeseen events on cash flows.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may refurn capital to sharcholders, raisc new debt or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as interest-bearing debts divided by total capital (equity attributable to owners
of the parent plus interest-bearing debts).

{Rs. in million}
Particulars Asat Asat As at
March 31,208 | March 31,2017 | April 1,2016

Borrowings -Short Term - 8 il
Borrowings -Long Term I b 21
Less : Cash and cash equivalent (65) (25 (11
Adjusted net debt (A) 64 (8) (78)
Total equity (B) 8§86 765 641

Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) -7% -1% -12%
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2,39 Explanation of transition to Ind AS

As mentioned in note 2.1 (i), these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018, are the first financial statements of the Company prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) notified under the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. For periods up to and
including the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordanee with “previous GAAP”, including accounting standards
notificd under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind-AS appticable for periods ended on or after March 31, 2018, together with the
comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial
statements, the Company’s opening balance shcet was prepared as at Aprii 1, 2016, the Company’s dale of transition to Ind-AS.

This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its previous GAAP finzncial statements, including the balance sheet as at April 1,
2016 and the financial staterents as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017,

According to Ind AS 101, the first Ind AS financial statements must use recognition and measurement principles that ase based on standards and interpretations
that are effective for the financial year ended March 31, 2018. These accounting principles and measurement principles must be applied retrospectively to the date
of transition to Ind AS and for all periods presented within the first Ind AS financial statements. Any resulting differences between carrying amounts of assets and
lisvilities according to Ind AS t01 as of April 1, 2016 compared with those presented in the previous GAAP Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2016, were recognised
in equity within the Ind AS Balance Sheet.

. Exemptions and exceptions availed

Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP 1o Ind AS.

Transition elections

Explanation of the Ind A8 101 exceptions and exemptions to the full retrospective application of Ind AS applied by the Company,

In the Ind AS opening Balance Sheet as at April |, 2016, the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities from the previous GAAP as at March 31, 2016 are generally
recognized and measured according to Ind AS in effect for the financial year ended as on March 31, 2018. For certain individual cases, however, Ind AS 101

provides for optional exemptians to the general principles of retrospective application of Ind AS. The Company has made use of the following exemptions in
preparing its Ind AS opening Balance Sheet.

a) Ind AS egptional exemptions:

(i) Property, plant and cquipment and intangible sssets

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying vaiue for ail of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as recognised
in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after
making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by [nd AS 38 Intangible Assets.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure alt of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value.

b) Ind AS mandatory exceptions:

(i) Estimaltes

An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date 1m accordance with
previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error.

Ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2016 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The Company has made
estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAP:

a) Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried at amorised cost
b) Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model

(i) Classifteation and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity o assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of
transition to Ind AS.Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the date
of transition if retrospective application is impracticable,

Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facls and circumstances that exist on the date of ransition. Measurement
of the financial assets accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is impracticable.
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“  WNotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

B. Reconciliations between previcus GAAP and Ind AS:

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables represent the
reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

(i) Reconciliation of equity as at April 1, 2016:
(Rs. in million)

Particulars Note reference Amount as per Effects of transition to Amaount as per
previous GAAP* Ind AS Ind AS

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 325 - 325
Capital work-in progress 7 - 7
Intangible assets 17 - 1)
Financial assets

Loans 4 - 4
Income tax assets 5 - 3
Deferred tax Assets (Net) 31 . 31
Other non-current assets 1 - 1

390 - 390

Cuarrent asscts

Inventories 219 - 219
Financial assets
i.  Trade receivables 262 - 262
iil.  Cash and cash equivalents 111 - 111
ili.  Other bank balances 50 - 30
iv.  Other financial assets 2 - 2
Other current assets 146 - 146
790 - 790
Total 1180 - 1,180
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 427 - 427
Other equity 214 - 214
641 - 641
Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilitics
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 10 - 10
Provisions 50 - 50
60 - 60

Current liabilitics
Financial Liabilities

i.  Trade payables 374 - 374
ti.  Other financial Liabilities 33 - 33
Other current liabilities 38 - 38
Provisions 21 - 21
Current tax liabilities 13 - 13

479 - 479
Total 1,180 - 1,180

*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS preseatation requirements for the purposes of this note.
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Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(i) Reconciliation of equity as at March 31,2017

{Rs. in million)

Particulars Note Amount as per Effects of transition to Amount as per
: reference previous GAAP* Ind AS Ind AS
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 329 329
Capital work-in progress 24 24
Intangible assets 15 15
Financial assets
Loans 4 4
Income tax assets 18 18
Deferred tax Assets (Net) 15 15
Other non-current assets i 1
406 406
Current assets
Iaven!iries 206 206
Financial assets
i. Investments 100 100
ii. Trade receivables 185 185
iii.  Cash and cash equivalents 25 25
iv,  Other bank balances 234 234
v.  Other financial assets 13 13
Other current assets 152 152
915 915
Total 1,321 1,321
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 427 427
Cther ~quity 338 338
765 765
Liabilitics
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 1 1
Provisions 22 22
23 23
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i.  Trade payables 367 367
ii.  Other financial liabilities 49 49
Other current liabilities 86 86
Provisions 25 23
Current tax liabilities 6 i}
533 533
Total 1,321 1,321

*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements Tor the purposes of this note.



Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(iif) Reconciliation of tetal comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2017:
{Rs. in million}

Particulars Note Awmount as per Effects of transition to Amount as per
reference previous GAAP* Ind AS lnd AS
Income
Revenue from operations 2 2,773 2973
Other income 98 98
Total !ncomc 2,871 1,871
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 1,692 1.692
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-iti-trade and work-in-progress 15 15
Excise duty on sales 2 284 284
Emplayee benefits expenses 1 304 {3) 301
Finance costs 1 1
Depreciation and amertisation expenses 68 68
Other expenses 333 333
Total expenses 2,697 3 2,694
Profit before tax 174 3 177
Tax expense
Current tax 35 35
Deferred tax (credit} / charge 3 i3 i 16
Profit for the year 124 2 126
Dthe. comprehensive income
Teem that will not be reclussified reclussified subsequent to profit or loss
Remcasurement of defined benefit liabilities 14 - 3) €3}
Tncome {ax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - i 1
Total other comprehensive income/ (expense) for the year, net of taxes - (2) {2)
Total comprehensive income for the year 124 124

*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conforn to Ind AS preseatation requirements for the purposes of this note.
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€. Netes to the reconciliationss

—

Empioyee benefits: Remeasurement of post employment benefit plans
Under Ind AS, remeasurericnts i.c. actuarial gains and losses on the net defined benefit liability are secogitised in ether comprehensive income instead of statenient of profit and loss, Under
previous GAAP these were forming part of the statement of profit and Lass for the year. As a result, loss for the year ended March 31, 2017 is increased by Rs. 2 miflion (niet of tax) and is

reclassified to other comprehensive income, There is no impact on the total equity as at March 31, 2017,

Excise dufy

(=]

Under the previous GAAP, revenue from sale of products was presented exclusive of excise duty. Under Ind AS, revenue front sale of goods is presented inclusive of exeise duty. The cxcise duly
paid is presented on thie face of the statement of profit and loss as part of expenses. This change has sesulted in an increase in total revenue znd total expenses for the year ended 3 March 2017 by
Rs.284 million. There is no impact on the total equity nnd profit.

Deferred tax

()

Previous GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and aceounting profits for the pericd. Ind AS 12
requires entitics to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, whicls focuses on temporary differences besween the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balanee sheel and
its tax base.

In addition, the varfous transitional adjustmnents lead to temporary differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in reserve and surplus ar a

separate component of equity. On the date of transition (i.e April 1, 2016), the net impact on deferred tax liabilities is of Rs, Nil (March 31, 2017: Rs. - millien). The profit and total equity for the
year ended March 31, 2017 decreased by Rs. - million due to differences in taxable profits and accounting profits.

4 Other comprehensive income

Under previous GAAP, there was no requirement to disciose any item of stalement of profit and loss in other comprehensive income, However as per requisement of Ind AS certain items of profit
or lass arc to be reclassified o other comprehiensive income. Consequent to this, the Company has reclassified remeasurcment of defined benefit plans from the statement of profit and loss to other
comprehensive income,

As per our report of even date attached
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